
17.0001.03000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

03/28/2017

Amendment to: HB 1418

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

As amended from the original version, the bill requires all statements of interest filed with the secretary of state to be 
made available on the internet.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The bill as now amended will not have a fiscal impact on the agency.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

None

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

None

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

None needed.



Name: Al Jaeger

Agency: Secretary of State

Telephone: 701-328-2900

Date Prepared: 03/28/2017



17.0001.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/16/2017

Amendment to: HB 1418

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The bill requires all statements of interest filed with the secretary of state and county and city auditors to be made 
available on the internet.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The bill does not prescribe the format in which the information is to be made available to the public on the internet 
by the filing offices listed in line 7 (secretary of state, county and city auditors). Without knowing the format and not 
knowing what the cost would be for fifty-three counties and 294 city governments to comply, this agency is unable to 
estimate a cost.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

There would be none since the filing of statement of interests does not have a fee.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

See 2B

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Unknown as to what would be needed by the various entities to comply with this request.



Name: Al Jaeger

Agency: Secretary of State

Telephone: 701-328-2900

Date Prepared: 01/20/2017



17.0001.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/16/2017

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1418

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The bill requires all statements of interest filed with the secretary of state and county and city auditors to be made 
available on the internet.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The bill does not prescribe the format in which the information is to be made available to the public on the internet 
by the filing offices listed in line 7 (secretary of state, county and city auditors). Without knowing the format and not 
knowing what the cost would be for fifty-three counties and 294 city governments to comply, this agency is unable to 
estimate a cost.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

There would be none since the filing of statement of interests does not have a fee.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

See 2B

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Unknown as to what would be needed by the various entities to comply with this request.



Name: Al Jaeger

Agency: Secretary of State

Telephone: 701-328-2900

Date Prepared: 01/20/2017
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2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Political Subdivision Committee 
Prairie Room, State Capitol 

HB 1418 
1/26/2017 

Job# 27471 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to publishing and preserving statements of interest. 

Minutes: 111.2.3.4 

Chairman Klemin: Opened the HB 1418. 

Rep. Mock: (Proposed amendment #1, handout #2,3,4) Introduced the HB 1418. This is a 
simple piece of Legislation that would be put in statute. It simple state the Secretary of State's 
office would need to publish on line the statement of interest forms that are currently 
submitted and collected by the Secretary of States office. We did draft an amendment to the 
bill to address some of the concerns related to the legislation. The way it's written now would 
require that the statement of interest for all candidates, including those at the city and county 
level that are collected by the County Auditors would also have to be published on line. The 
concern with that was some cities and counties may not have a website. So they would have 
to create a website in order to produce and put the documents on line. We drafted an 
amendment to the bill and it would create a new bullet point that would remove the language 
on lines 13 and 14. After line 18 add a new subsection and state. The statement of interest 
forms that are currently collected by the Secretary of State that those documents would be 
published on line. Any documents collected by cities and counties would not have to be 
published on line. It would also add a study. Explained handout #2. Handed out #3. Nearly 
all states require a statement of interest completed by candidates elected and appointed 
officials. Handed out #4. At least 29 states require their statement of interest of financial 
disclosure forms to be available on line. 

Chairman Klemin: Why 7 days? 

Rep. Mock: I believe that's current with other filings. The intent of for them not to create a 
searchable database. We don't want them to recreate a website, it can be as simple as 
scanning these documents or taking the digital documents and making them available on 
line. 

Rep K. Koppelman: A few years ago we attempted to get county budgets and different 
political subdivision budgets published on line and there was concerns about not having 
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HB 1418 
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Page 2 

websites. Have you received similar complaints or concerns and is that the reason for the 
amendment you proposed? 

Rep.Mock: I did not hear from counties specifically. But the Secretary of State's office did 
want to have the clarifying language. These are all public records, we are not creating a new 
form, if there is a readily accessible and convenient way we can make these documents 
available, I'm open to it. 

Rep K. Koppelman: Have you asked for a fiscal note on your amended version of the bill? 

Rep. Mock: I believe this amendment and the intent in providing this current document as it 
is completed available on line. I believe that would eliminate any fiscal impact. 

Rep K. Koppelman: We have a lot of documents that are public and available to the public. 
Why is this special, why should be elevate this public document above others in terms of 
cost, access and visibility? 

Rep Mock: It is one of the few apply to elected and appointed officials that is not readily 
available on line. All of our campaign disclosures are available on line, this is a rare 
exception. 

John Arnold, Elections Director for Secretary of State's Office: Neutral testimony. In 
terms of policy we respite the decision of the Legislature. We are talking about a searchable • 
system. Rep. Mock stated he is fine with us making scans of all the documents that are filed 
and post them on our website. There is no cost for us. If you want to extend the 7 days, great. 
I would not suggest going shorter than 7 days because we get most of the statement of 
interest form is around 4pm on the 64th day before an election. We support the study because 
it clarifies the intent a little bit more. And because the statement of interest form is the one 
form we get a lot of questions on. 

Rep. Johnson: How many elected officials send a hard copy? 

Mr. Arnold: I think the better answer is how many submit it on line? 2016 was the first year 
that candidates could file their paperwork using our on line utility. There was 4 people to do 
that. 

Rep. Johnson: Typically fill in forms, you pdf it before you print? 

Mr. Arnold: Yes. 

Rep. Johnson: That would go into a database and someone calls up and says I want a 
person's statement of interest; can you email it then? 

Mr. Arnold: Yes. Any of them that are submitted on line we can save as pdf and post or 
email it out. 

Vice Chairman Hatlestad: If only 4 of 80 or 90 people send the form and you said there is 
no additional cost to scan that in. • 
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Mr. Arnold: In terms of staff time but nothing that would go into a fiscal note. We can build 
that into the work flow of our office. 

Chairman Klemin: Closed the hearing on HB 1418. 



2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Political Subdivision Committee 
Prairie Room, State Capitol 

HS 1418 
1/27/2017 

Job# 27551 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to publishing and preserving statements of interest 

Minutes: 

Chairman Klemin: Opened for committee work. This is a bill about making statements of 
interest that are filed available on the internet to the public through the Secretary of State's 
Office. There were some amendments that were proposed . I don't know if the amendments 
change a whole lot in the bill other than adding section 2 for a Legislative management study. 
Shall consider studying. 

Rep. Zubke: I believe the amendments do more than just the study, I think they also make it 
where the Secretary of State puts these statements up on their website instead of forcing the 
local political subdivisions. 

Chairman Klemin: That's correct. The bill does say county or city auditor. 

Rep. Pyle: Can we extend 7 days to 10 to 14? To give the office time to get the work done. 

Chairman Klemin: What about the section to study, do we need to study this? 

Vice Chairman Hatlestad: (inaudible) 

Chairman Klemin: We have the proposed amendment and we can change that to 14 days. 
This becomes a law for the Secretary of State to do it, what are we studying I'm not sure? 

Rep. Beadle: Looking through the study language, it's not just the intent of putting it on line 
that is being studied . But rather looking at best practices in other states, as well as the 
purposes, effectiveness, and intent of statement of interest. Perhaps to look at adjusting the 
way the states statement of interest requirements work. Currently ours is pretty simple you 
put down a list of institution once every 4 years and that's the extent of it. 

Rep K. Koppelman: Moved to amend the bill excluding section 2 of the proposed 
amendment and changing the 7 days to 14. 
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Page 2 

Rep. Guggisberg: Second the motion. 

Chairman Klemin: Moved by Rep K. Koppelman and seconded by Rep. Guggisberg to 
remove section 2 from the proposed amendment and change the 7 days to 14 days. And to 
make any other amendments to this that is consistent with that, maybe something in the 
heading that we need to adjust. 

Rep. Ertelt: I do believe that Mr. Arnold stated that he wouldn't suggest a timeframe longer 
than 7 days. 

Rep. Guggisberg: I believe he said he could do it in 7 days but would appreciate it to have 
it longer. But it seems like if someone is going to study this the Secretary of State can do it 
himself. 

Voice vote - carried 

Rep. Johnson: Made a motion for a do pass as amended. 

Rep. Zubke: Second the motion. 

Rep. Ertelt: The comment was made about the study, if there were a study to be done I 
would say it would have been more appropriate to study beforehand how many times these 
statements are actually accessed or requested. 

Do pass as amended yes 10, no 4, absent 1. 

Rep. Beadle: Will be the carrier. 



17.0001.01002 
Title.02000 

//-:J1(11 bV 
Adopted by the Political Subdivisions 
Committee 

January 27, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1418 

Page 1, after line 6 insert: 

"i" 

Page 1, line 8, overstrike "1." and insert immediately thereafter "a." 

Page 1, line 9, overstrike "2." and insert immediately thereafter "Q,." 

Page 1, line 13, overstrike "3." 

Page 1, line 13, remove "Make each statement available on the internet to the public free of 
charge within" 

Page 1, remove line 14 

Page 1, line 15, replace"4."with"c." 

Page 1, after line 18, insert: 

"2. The secretary of state shall make each statement filed under this chapter 
with the secretary of state available on the internet to the public free of 
charge within fourteen days after filing." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.0001.01002 



2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB / 'f / 'j 

House Political Subdivisions 

D Subcommittee 

Date: l -,2 7 - 17 
Roll Call Vote: I 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 1, . o oa I. o 1 0OJ.,, ~xdu.ck Section ~ 

Recommendation: ¢ dept Amendment 
a._r-c/ c..,'1tt..l"'\9-< 7 d.a.<-(S +o IL/ da..<-fS' • 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By 12.e.(2, j:_ rJ f?l?d;,z4:; Seconded By l2e fZ . G- y.._// ~ S ½ 
Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Klemin 
Vice Chairman Hatlestad 
Rep. Beadle 
Rep. Becker 
Rep. Ertelt 
Rep. Johnson 
Rep. Koppelman 
Rep. Lonqmuir 
Rep. Maraqos 
Rep. Pyle 
Rep. Simons 
Rep. Toman 
Rep.Zubke 

No Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ------ - - ---

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

t)o : c.~ 

Representatives Yes No 
Rep. Guqqisberq 
Rep. Hanson 



2017 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB / '-/1 cj 

House Political Subdivisions 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Date: 1-~ 7-/ 7 
Roll Call Vote: ~ 

Committee 

-----------------------
"' Recommendation: 0 Adopt Amendment 

01)0 Pass D Do Not Pass 
QrAsAmended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By ~R~e......,/J~· ---""'!Cf.......,..o~h~n~ S~0~'1- Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Klemin ./ 
Vice Chairman Hatlestad / 
Rep. Beadle / 
Rep. Becker / 
Rep. Ertelt / 
Rep. Johnson / 
Rep. Koppelman / 
Rep. Longmuir / 
Rep. Maragos -
Rep. Pyle / 
Rep. Simons ./ 
Rep. Toman / 
Rep. Zubke / 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) I O No -----=-------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Representatives Yes No 
Rep. Guqqisberq / 
Rep. Hanson / 



Com Standing Committee Report 
January 30, 2017 8:33AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 18_003 
Carrier: Beadle 

Insert LC: 17 .0001.01002 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1418: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Klemin, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING) . HB 1418 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, after line 6 insert: 

"i" 

Page 1, line 8, overstrike "1 ." and insert immediately thereafter"~" 

Page 1, line 9, overstrike "2." and insert immediately thereafter"~" 

Page 1, line 13, overstrike "3." 

Page 1, line 13, remove "Make each statement available on the internet to the public free of 
charge within" 

Page 1, remove line 14 

Page 1, line 15, replace "4." with "c." 

Page 1, after line 18, insert: 

"~ The secretary of state shall make each statement filed under this chapter 
with the secretary of state available on the internet to the public free of 
charge within fourteen days after filing ." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 18_003 
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2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Political Subdivisions Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

HB 1418 
3/17/2017 

Job# 29383 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to publishing and preserving statements of interests. 

Minutes: II Written testimony #1 Rep. Cory Mock pgs.1-6 

Chairman Burckhard opened the hearing for HB 1418. All senators are present. 

(:22-5:38) Rep. Cory Mock, District 18, Grand Forks. Sponsor of HB1418. He testified in 
favor of HB1418. Written testimony #1, pgs. 1-6. Electronic Access and Financial Disclosure 
forms. 

Sen. Anderson: It seems to me that when I looked at this and follow it on line, you had to 
print it out and sign it and rescan it in and submit, is that correct? 

Rep. Mock: I believe that was how it used to be. Now you can print it and send it in, but 
currently you can submit this form electronically. 

Sen. Anderson: Did you scan it in or did they accept an electronic signature? I think that 
right now, you have to scan it in and send it to the Secretary of State. There is not an 
electronic signature provision and if were going to submit it on line, have it available on line, 
you need to have so that you can fill out the form on line, that means a refillable PDF, accept 
electronic signature and send it in, otherwise it just more expensive for the Secretary of 
State's office. That is now their task with making it, scanning it, putting in on personal and all 
that. 

Rep. Cory Mock: The way the form currently is it a completable PDF, that you can then print 
off, you then have it notarized and then you can scan it and submit it electronically. You would 
attach it within the data base, upload that document and it would be loaded electronically in 
the system. I also believe the current practice with the Secretary of State's office is that they 
do scan all of those documents currently, so if you complete this form and it's notarized you 
mail it in to the Secretary of State's office and they scan the documents and have a digital 
record. It is just not available on line. So if a request comes in they can pull that document 
and they can satisfy the request. But they are already completed, which is why there is no 
fiscal note associated with the bill. The Secretary of State office on the House side, said that 
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as long as it didn't need to be a searchable data base, it didn't have to be tied into any or 
linked into any other system, if it was just made available and that you can view by year, 
these statements of interests that there would be no fiscal impact. 

Senator Anderson: For the last 6-8 years every time I fill out my corporate reports, I send 
them out to the Secretary of State and say is there a way that you can save this information 
so that the next year all I have to do is say there is no changes and submit it again. Then the 
Secretary of State tells me every time, that they are working on that. So that's why I am 
questioning here. Now I don't see that this requires a notary actually. I hope it doesn't 
because we don't need that additional step in here. We need an electronic signature that 
says I signed this. When you say that this is easy, my perception is it is not. 

Sen. J. Lee: I don't mind at all having my campaign contributions and expenditures out there, 
but why do they need their business what my mutual funds might be? 

Rep. Cory Mock: You raised a great philosophical question. It is one that we could have 
regarding whether or not this is even information that should be submitted by candidates in 
the first place. The bigger question is why are filling out these documents that are open to 
the public but not making them readily open to the public that we are already allowing for 
them to be submitted electronically but they can be scanned and digital records retained but 
there not readily accessible. So members of the public would then have to make an open 
records request to receive this information. I would be more than open to us in the interim 
reviewing the different disclosure documents that we as candidate all have to complete. I 
would even point out on the statement of interest, on the bottom on item A the categories in 
which you must select of your primary source or principal of income, I am a non-profit director, 
what category do I check. The form itself certainly could and probably should be re-visited 
for its advocacy and its intent. I think that would go more to your question Sen. Lee, are the 
mutual funds something that need to be reported and disclosed, or if it's about principles. For 
the time being it just seems as though we are taking on an extra step to not make this 
information available as we're always submitting it. 

Sen. J. Lee: I am trying to decide if I am suspected of being more easily corrupted if I have 
no assets, some assets, or loss of assets. In ND where privacy is a huge issue, especially 
with financial stuff, I just don't think it's anybody's business. 

Rep. Cory Mock: You being up a very good points. Again, this is the document that I don't 
know has been filled out and required to be filled out for how many years, and I think we are 
at that point where we certainly should be evaluating what this document intentions are and 
how we can make it so it is informing the public of conflicts of interest, but it's also not 
disclosing inappropriate or unnecessary information on candidates. I think there is a level of 
privacy that certainly can be presumed and should be protected, but there is the assurance 
that we want to provide to the public that there are not conflicts as citizen fegislators or elected 
officials. I know that's the reason this was in place. It's modern, it efficient and it's getting the 
information that the public needs in an effective way. 

Sen. D. Larson: With the tenure and I have a couple of questions regarding that. 1) So I 
submit this document this year, do then do they keep that one for 1 O years and then the next 
one and then the next one and so forth, because they might change or do you only keep an 



Senate Political Subdivisions Committee 
HB 1418 
March 17, 2017 
Page 3 

updated version and why would you keep it for 10 years if I am no longer. Why not just until 
my term of office expires? Why do they have to keep records of any sort, even electronically 
if it's not really an issue any more? 

Rep. Cory Mock: Again, when this was put in, this was an amendment that was added for 
consistency purposed with other provisions regarding retention of records. So, I would be 
happy to defer to the Secretary of State's office. That is not a provision that was really specific 
to the intent of the bill, it was a matter of allowing the Legislative Council and the Secretary 
of State's office to have consistency in how they are retaining and presenting information. 
For the purposes of this bill it was really about making the documents that are already 
submitted electronically, and scanned digitally to make them available to the public on the 
website. 

Sen. D. Larson: Again I don't have a problem with people knowing about my information it 
is just that it seems like a more difficult situation for the Secretary of State's office to, as this 
isn't clear to me, do they have to keep each set of records for 10 years or and why would 
they have to even use their computer space to keep records for their no longer pertinent to 
anybody's. 

Rep. Cory Mock: My understanding is that with each document that you would submit, so in 
the 2016 election, your documents would then be retained for 10 years. In 2020, if you ran 
again, and submitted those documents that that document then would be retained for 10 
years. I think that that is when you submit a campaign finance report it doesn't replace the 
old one, it is just into this one. Really to why I can't speak to, but if I am running the IT 
Department of the Secretary of State's office, I believe it would be more time consuming for 
me to go in and delete those records from each year of individuals who are no longer serving 
than it would be to just have a blanket document of all 2016 and these are all the pdfs. After 
10 years they can all be removed. 

Chairman Burckhard asked for opposition testimony, then neutral testimony. 

Sen. Anderson: I think we should ask the Secretary of State's office how this really works. 

16:58-17:27) Beth Herzog: With the Secretary of State's office. In our office this would 
involve that once the statement is filed with our office, we would just scan them as a PDF, 
and then make them available as a link on our website. It is something that would not have 
fiscal impact to our agency. It is something that we have determined that it's really a policy 
issue, and if you decide it's a good policy then we will be able to do it easily and if you 
determine not too, then that would be fine with us as well. 

Sen. Anderson: Tell me about the fillable PDF and the electronic signature and where we 
are at with that with the Secretary of State's office? 

(17:36) Ms. Beth Herzog: I do the public information for our office, and I know that they had 
come up with a new system this last year when Candice filed their forms that there was option 
to submit that option of Statement of Interest form on line. I don't remember for sure if that 
was something that they could fill out and have it signed again for if it was the one that yyou 
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have to uploaded again or if it was the one that was filled out currently on line and 
automatically unloaded. But it was an available PDF. 

Chairman Burckhard closed the hearing on HB 1418. 

Sen. Judy Lee: It's sort of amusing to me especially in a rural state, that you can check off 
that you are a farmer for example, but am I a hobby farmer, or do I 4000 acres or do I own 
40,000 acres. None of that stuff is even discussed, not that it ought to be. But you have to 
list all of the mutual funds even if you got $500 in each one. It is just a silly form and I don't 
think it's anybody's business. 

Chairman Burckhard: Either the form could be updated or eliminated. Do we want to do 
anything with this bill or get ready for the next hearing? 

Chairman Burckhard closed the hearing on HB1418. 



2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Political Subdivisions Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

HB 1418 
3/24/2017 

Job Number 29684 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to publishing and preserving statement of interests. 

Minutes: Rep. Mock referenced his handouts 
(attachment #1) from his testimony on 
3/17/17 on job# 29383 ; .i/-ld~'*~ 

Chairman Burckhard: Opened the meeting. All senators were present. 

John Arnold, Director for the Secretary of State: As to the bill as it stands right now, just 
as a refresher the bill is requesting that those statements be posted on line. That is something 
our office will leave up to you that is purely a policy decision. If you want to go that way we 
are fine with it, we just want to reassure you that we can post those online. Now as to some 
of the questions that came up to what is necessary on the form and I believe that is the 
amendment that Representative Mock handed out as well, is calling for a study. We welcome 
a study because we have a lot of those questions as well. The Statement of Interest form is 
the one form that we get the most questions and probably have some of the least answers 
to just because 16.109 is kind of vague to what is required . We would welcome a study to 
make filling out and completing the Statement of Interests for you the candidates, the 
members who get appointed to commissions make it easier for them as well as for our office 
in fielding those questions. (0:00-1 :39) 
Filling Requirements for Statement of Interests Form, See Attachment #1 . Proposed 
Amendment, Representative Mock, See Attachment #2. 

Senator Anderson: The one year that is in there now was originally intended to make sure 
that was available to the public while we were running for election and after that it wasn't 
necessary. In your opinion am I wrong in that? We were talking about the one year to ten . 

John Arnold: What we do with the statement of interest right now is hold onto them for the 
length that you are in office and this would change it to ten years which follows the campaign 
finance statement period. 
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Senator Anderson: Because this says for one year now, that is current language and I think 
that was intended to be access to the public while we are running for office, hat was the only 
purpose of it. 

John Arnold: I believe the one year was for the people that are not elected or appointed. So 
if you lose an election it is saved for one year. 

Senator Anderson: My second point is this section two on the bill here what says that we 
are going to put it online. The Secretary of State's office could do that now. 

John Arnold: We would just change our process. When one of these were filed we just went 
down to the fault and filed it. Now we just scan it and send it as a pdf and put it on our website. 

Senator Anderson: You really don't need legislation to say you should do that. 

John Arnold: We may not. 

Senator Anderson: The third thing is when you look at the study, wouldn't it make more 
sense for the bill to require for the Secretary of State to do the study rather than say legislative 
management should do the study because you are the ones that have all of the information 
and all the questions and most of the answers? 

John Arnold: I see where you are going and actually do to 1418 coming up in the 
discussions in our office we have decided to eternally just study what our colleagues are 
doing in other states are doing with these. However, in the Secretary of State's office we 
cannot set policy. As to what should be required the intent of the statement of interests, we 
look to the legislature to set those guidelines. 

Senator Larson: Even when we were first hearing this I asked why on earth ten years, why 
not until the person no longer holds the office? 

John Arnold: That is the current practice. The reason for ten years that we suggested is just 
to make it consistent with the campaign finance filing deadline. If we want to keep it to the 
length that you serve office, we would be okay with that too. That is the status quo right now. 

Senator Larson: Because it seems like that is a lot of data for you to have to store for a 
length of time that isn't going to be interest to anybody beyond while they are in office. 

John Arnold: In the case of your office State Senator, if you are in your third term, we would 
actually have more by keeping everything. If we go down to ten years from the filing date, we 
would only have two on hand for pretty much at any time or three for that two-year term. So 
we would actually potentially have less data on the website than more. 

Senator Larson: You mean more if you kept it ten years or if you didn't keep it ten years? 

John Arnold: We would have less if we just had the ten-year retention for anybody who 
serves more than three terms. If you are in your fourth term, right now that is sixteen years, 
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lots of resources. I don't think it is necessary for someone to sit around in their underwear at 
their kitchen table checking out my financial records online. It is still available but they have 
to make an effort to contact your office. In looking at the NCSL statement which you provided, 
I kind of like Wisconsin's deal where they have to obtain the identity of anyone examining a 
statement of economic interest and notify the pertinent official of his or her identity. That 
seems to me the deal when you look at that form it is absolutely so incomplete, if I check 
farmer it doesn't say if I have forty acres or four hundred acres or forty thousand acres. There 
is nothing that talks about the resource of the farmer, nothing. The only people who have to 
reveal anything about their financial interests are those who might have mutual funds or other 
investment type interest, which I don't think is proper. I know everything in the world is 
supposed to be secure today but I don't think anyone, I don't think my kids need to know 
unless I choose to tell them. It isn't up to the Secretary of State's office to decide if they get 
to know about that. 

John Arnold: I agree completely it is not up to the Secretary of State's office, back to Senator 
Anderson's question, this is purely policy. We leave that up to the legislature. Whatever 
comes out with the study, we are the filling office and we will accept it. 

Senator Lee: When was there any serious attention given to what this statement of interest 
form really says, even though it says 2015 I suspect that's when it was printed, not 
necessarily when it was developed. It is, as I just reviewed, totally inconsistent in the way it 
reports assets and resources. 

John Arnold: That history I would have to go back and do a little more research on. I really 
don't know that but I would be happy to find that for you. 

Senator Lee: It appears to me we have just been doing it the way we did it. There is a very 
small window of people whose resources are absolutely available for anybody to read about. 
It shouldn't matter to anybody in this room or in the world, if I have a Morgan Stanley account 
or not. If I have to reveal if I have a Morgan Stanley account or anything else then I think the 
other people who have other occupations with significantly more assets, in many cases then 
I might have, ought to have to give the same detailed information. I don't think any of us 
should have to. 

John Arnold: I believe Senator Lee you've elegantly displayed some of the questions we 
get that we cannot provide answers to, do I put my Morgan Stanley investments on there, we 
don't have the answers to that. We advise the filer if you have any question maybe you should 
put it on. If you want any further advice seek private legal counsel. 

Chairman Burckhard: So do I have to put my share of stock as a Green Bay Packer owner 
or part owner? 

John Arnold: We advise, if you think that is something you need to put down you should put 
it down. If you want any further counsel , you should seek a lawyer. 

Senator Dotzenrod: The way the form was designed it really isn't to identify the dollar 
amounts, it is to identify the entity and that is all. All they want to know is the name of the 
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entity. I don't think there is anything in here that would separate someone who is moderate 
income from high income. 

John Arnold: Correct, it's just what interest you have. It doesn't say anything about 
percentage or dollar amount. Again this is one of the forms we get the most questions on 
where we have the least answers, unfortunately. 

Chairman Burckhard: Anymore questions. Okay committee are we ready or come back to 
it later? 

Senator Larson: I appreciate Representatives Mack's additions to this but there are some 
things in this, like for example number two, that I would like not to see in the bill anyway. I 
wouldn't have a problem with changing the entire bill into a study and not adopting any of the 
rest of it. 

Chairman Burckhard: Is that a motion? 

Senator Larson: Yes. 

Senator Larson made a motion to turn it into a study. 

Senator Kannianen seconded the motion. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes-6 No-0 Absent-0 

Senator Anderson moved a do pass as amended. 

Senator Diane Larson seconded the motion. 

Roll Call Vote: Yes-6 No-0 Absent-0 

Senator Diane Larson will carry the bill. 
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Adopted by the Senate Political Subdivisions '-
Committee 

March 24, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1418 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of statements of interests. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - STATEMENTS OF 
INTERESTS. During the 2017-18 interim, the legislative management shall consider 
studying the purpose and content of statements of interests and the forms and 
information required to be filed, including the appropriate financial interests and other 
necessary content. The study must include consideration of whether supplementary 
statements or updates of information are necessary and a determination as to who is 
required to file statements of interest and who should be filing statements of interest. 
The study also must include a review of filing deadlines and consideration of how long 
records should be retained. The legislative management shall report its findings and 
recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 
recommendations, to the sixty-sixth legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.0001 .02002 



2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1418 

Senate Political Subdivisions 

D Subcommittee 

Date: 3/24/17 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: Turned the bill into a study --~(J-7-. a-o-o-,-. o-~- IJ-a:J_ )__.__ __________ _ 

Recommendation: ~ Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Senator D. Larson Seconded By Senator Kannianen 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes 
Chairman Randy Burckhard X Senator Dotzenrod X 

Vice Chairman Howard Anderson X 

Senator Jordan Kannianen X 

Senator Diane Larson X 

Senator Judy Lee X 

Total 

No 

(Yes) 6 No 0 --- ------ -- ---------------
Absent 0 ___:_ _____________________________ _ 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1418 

Senate Political Subdivisions 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Date: 3/24/17 
Roll Call Vote #: 2 

Committee 

------------------------

Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

181 Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
181 As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Senator Anderson Seconded By Senator D. Larson 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chairman Randv Burckhard X Senator Dotzenrod X 

Vice Chairman Howard Anderson X 

Senator Jordan Kannianen X 

Senator Diane Larson X 

Senator Judy Lee X 

Total (Yes) _6 ______ _ _ __ No _o ___________ __ _ 

Absent 0 --------------------------------
Floor Assignment Senator Diane Larson 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
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Module ID: s_stcomrep_54_025 
Carrier: D. Larson 

Insert LC: 17.0001.02002 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1418, as engrossed: Political Subdivisions Committee (Sen. Burckhard, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1418 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of statements of interests. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - STATEMENTS OF 
INTERESTS. During the 2017-18 interim, the legislative management shall consider 
studying the purpose and content of statements of interests and the forms and 
information required to be filed, including the appropriate financial interests and other 
necessary content. The study must include consideration of whether supplementary 
statements or updates of information are necessary and a determination as to who is 
required to file statements of interest and who should be filing statements of interest. 
The study also must include a review of filing deadlines and consideration of how 
long records should be retained. The legislative management shall report its findings 
and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 
recommendations, to the sixty-sixth legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_54_025 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Mock 

January 24, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1418 

Page 1, line 2, after "interests" insert "; and to provide for a legislative management study" 

Page 1, after line 6, insert: 

"~" 

Page 1, line 8, overstrike "1 ." and insert immediately thereafter 11
~" 

Page 1, line 9, overstrike 112.11 and insert immediately thereafter "tL" 

Page 1, line 13, remove "Make each statement available on the internet to the public free of 
charge within" 

Page 1, remove line 14 

Page 1, line 15, replace "4. 11 with "c." 

Page 1, after line 18, insert: 

"2 . The secretary of state shall make each statement filed under this chapter 
with the secretary of state available on the internet to the public free of 
charge within seven days after filing. 

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2017-18 interim, 
the legislative management shall consider studying the purpose, effectiveness, and 
intent of statements of interests , including best practices in other states. In conducting 
the study, the legislative management shall seek input from the secretary of state 
regarding the necessity of updating the form and the contents of statements of 
interests. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, 
together with an legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the 
sixty-sixth legislative assembly. 11 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.0001 .01001 



STATEMENT OF INTERESTS 
SECRETARY OF STATE 
SFN 10172 (10-2015) 

PAGE 4 FOR INSTRUCTIONS 

References to the Statement of Interests are found in North Dakota Century Code, Chapter 16.1-09. 

FILING REQUIREMENTS FOR STATEMENT OF INTERESTS 

I -J~ -17 
Secretary of State 
State of North Dakota 
600 E Boulevard Ave Dept 108 
Bismarck ND 58505-0500 
Telephone: (701) 328-4146 
Toll-Free: (800) 352-0867, option 6 
Fax: (701) 328-3413 
Email: soselect@nd.gov 
Website : Vote.ND.Gov 

1. Every candidate for elective office shall file a Statement of Interests with the appropriate filing officer with whom the candidate filed his/her 
Certificate of Endorsement SFN 17196 or Petition/Certificate of Nomination SFN 2704. 

a. Candidates for President and Vice President of the United States shall file with the Secretary of State either a Statement of Interests as 
required by Chapter 16.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code or a copy of the personal disclosure statement required by the Federal 
Election Commission. 

b. Candidates for US Senate and US House of Representatives shall file this form with the Secretary of State or a copy of the personal 
disclosure statement required by the Federal Election Commission. 

c. Candidates for statewide office shall file with the Secretary of State. 
d. Candidates for legislative office shall file with the Secretary of State. 
e. Candidates for Garrison Conservancy and Soil Conservation district shall file with the County Auditor in their county of residence. 
f. Candidates for District Judge shall file with the Secretary of State. 
g. Candidates for county offices shall file with the County Auditor. 
h. Candidates for city offices shall file with the City Auditor. 
i. Candidates for school district offices shall file with the School Business Manager of the school district. 

The Statement of Interests shall be filed at the same time a Petition/Certificate of Nomination or Certificate of Endorsement is filed . 

Candidates filing a Statement of Interests for the primary election need not re-file for the general election. 

2. Every person appointed by the Governor to a state agency, board, bureau, commission, department, or occupation or professional licensing 
board shall file a Statement of Interests with the Secretary of State no later than the announcement of the appointment. 

se refer to the instructions provided on page 4 of the Statement of Interest for answering specific questions before completing this form. 

Spouse's Name 

Address City 

1 .... 0_ffi_,c_e_w_hi_c_h_C_a_nd_i-da_t_e_is_s_e_e_k_in_g _____________ _.l QR I Position to Which Appointed 

ITEMA 
Name of Business or Employer 

PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION/SOURCE OF INCOME (Check One) 

D 
D 

Farmer 

Business Owner 

D Other 

D Military 

D Laborer 

Spouse's Name of Business or Employer 

D Investor or Retired 

D Professional 

SPOUSE'S PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION/SOURCE OF INCOME (Check One) 

rmer D Military D Investor or Retired 

usiness Owner D Laborer D Professional 

D Other 

I 

D Clerical and Sales 

D Craftsman 

D Clerical and Sales 

D Craftsman 

Telephone Number 

State Zip Code 

D Government Employee 

D Student 

D Government Employee 

D Student 



SFN 10172 (10-2015) Page 2 of4 

Please Print 

ITEM B 

List the name of each business or trust that is NOT the principal source of income in which you and/or your spouse have a 
financial interest. 

(BUSINESS NAME OR TRUST NAME (list city and state where located)] 

EXAMPLE: Make Me A Lot of Money Investment Co. (Mutual Funds) Bismarck, ND 

ITEM C 

List below the associations or institutions with which you and/or your spouse are closely associated, 
or serve as a director or officer, AND which may be affected by legislative action (for legislative 
candidates), or action of the officeholder of the office to which you are a candidate or appointee. 

ASSOCIATION OR INSTITUTION CAPACITY 

SELF SPOUSE 

X X 

• 
Place an "X" to 

indicate the 
interested party. 

SELF SPOUSE 



SFN10172(10-2015) Page3of4 

Please Print 

ify below by name, any business offices, business directorships, and fiduciary relationships that 
u and/or your spouse have held in the preceding year. 

ASSOCIATION OR INSTITUTION CAPACITY 

AFFIDAVIT 

Place an "X" to 
indicate the 

interested party. 

SELF SPOUSE 

I, the undersigned, declare this Statement of Interests has been examined by me and to the best of my knowledge is a true, 
correct, and complete statement of my financial interests. I understand any intentional violation of the law requiring the filing of 
this statement shall result in my being deprived of my appointment or assuming the duties of the elective office. 

Signature of Candidate or Appointee I Date 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR STATEMENT OF INTERESTS 

WHO FILES: The Statement of Interests must be filed by all candidates seeking to have their name placed on the ballot for federal, statewid 
judicial district, legislative, county, multi-district, city, and school district office. Every person appointed by the Governor to a state agency, 
board, bureau, commission, department, or occupation or professional licensing board shall also file a Statement of Interests. 

WHEN TO FILE: Every candidate for elective office must file a Statement of Interests with the appropriate filing officer at the same time as filing 
his/her Certificate of Endorsement SFN 17196 or Petition/Certificate of Nomination SFN 2704 and Affidavit of Candidacy SFN 2703. 
Appointees of the Governor shall file a Statement of Interests no later than the announcement of the appointment. 

WHERE TO FILE: 

FEDERAL, STATEWIDE, JUDICIAL, AND LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT CANDIDATES - File with the Secretary of State: 
Secretary of State 

State of North Dakota 
600 E Boulevard Ave Dept 108 

Bismarck ND 58505-0500 
APPOINTEES OF THE GOVERNOR - File with the Secretary of State 
COUNTY AND MULTI-DISTRICT CANDIDATES - File with the County Auditor in their county of residence 
CITY CANDIDATES - File with the City Auditor 
SCHOOL DISTRICT CANDIDATES - File with the School Business Manager 

HOW TO FILE: 

ITEM A - PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION: The occupations listed are those defined on the North Dakota state income tax return . Check only one 
category for the principal source of income for yourself, and only one for your spouse. Please mark and complete the box labeled "other" if you 
or your spouse's occupation is not listed. 

ITEM B - List by name each business or trust that is NOT the principal source of income, in which you and/or your spouse have a financial 
interest. Include any of the following that apply: 

1. Any business or trust in which you and/or your spouse own a legal or equitable interest. 

2. Any business or trust in which you and/or your spouse have investments. Include the name of the business or trust of which you hav 
stocks, mutual funds, bonds, debentures, or debt obligations of corporations and/or municipal corporations. Financial interests that a, 
contained in diversified portfolios need only be mentioned by the brokerage establishment it is with . 

3. Any business or trust from which you and/or your spouse receive compensation. 

4. Any business or trust paying you and/or your spouse a fee or commission for professional or consulting services. Include those public 
agencies from which you and/or your spouse received a fee or commission. Attorneys and others who list their principal occupation as 

"professional" are not required to list clients. 

5. Public agencies (state or local) to which you and/or your spouse sold goods or services. 

ITEM C - List the associations or institutions with which you and/or your spouse are closely associated, or serve as a director or officer of, 
and which maybe affected by legislative action (for legislative candidates) or action of the officeholder of the office to which you are a candidate 
or appointee. 

List organizations and associations and note the capacity of you and/or your spouse's relationship such as "member", "board of 
directors", "consultant", etc. 

ITEM D - Identify by name any business office, business directorship, and fiduciary relationship that you and/or your spouse have held in 
the preceding calendar year. 

Fiduciary means acting as a guardian, trustee, executor, administrator, or conservator for any person, whether individual or corporate. 
Specify the capacity of the relationship of you and/or your spouse for any of the listed businesses, trusts and/or fiduciary relationships, 
such as "director", "executor", "trustee", etc. 

SPECIAL NOTES: 

Items B, C and D of th is form have limited space for listing items. If you need more space, attach additional sheets in the same format 
and clearly identify which of the three items (B, C or D) the additional sheet continues. Insert the additional sheets into this form . 

Use an "X" to indicate the "interest" relationship for (a) yourself, or (b) your spouse. 

You are not required to list dollar amounts or the nature of the work performed in ITEMS B, C or D. 

ASSISTANCE: Questions regarding the Statement of Interests may be directed to the Elections Unit of the Secretary of State's Office at (701) 
328-4146 or (800) 352-0867 or the appropriate filing officer. 
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Electronic Access and Financial Disclosure 
By Natalie O'Donnell Wood 

Why File Financial Disclosures? In all but three states, legislators, other public officials 
and, sometimes, public employees, must disclose some information about their personal 
financess. Many states have justified the need for disclosures in statute. Pennsylvania, for 
example, notes that, "in order to strengthen faith and confidence" in government, the public 
has a right to "be assured that the financial interests of (office holders) do not conflict with 
the public trust. " Colorado and Texas similarly mention that financial disclosures lead to 
trust and confidence in government. 

Another often-cited benefit to financial disclosure is that it enables filers to examine and 
review potential areas where their private interests and public service may intersect. North 
Carolina's statute says that, "the purpose of disclosure ... is co identify and avoid conflicts of 
interest and potential conflicts of interest between private interests and public duties." The 
statute further holds public officials accountable by calling on them to "take an active, thor
ough, and conscientious role in the disclosure and review process." Washington's Public Dis
closure Commission tells filers that disclosure laws "stem from common law and the biblical 
caution chat 'no man can serve two masters."' 

Why e-file? Groups such as the Sunlight Foundation, the National Institute for Money and 
State Politics and the Center for Public Integrity support and promote easily accessible, and 
even searchable, online financial information about public officials. They argue that open 
access to such information is critical to educating the public about whom or what influences 
their elected officials. North Carolina's Ethics Commission has noted chat "public scrutiny 
of these documents allows the public to see for themselves that their public officials are free 
from impermissible or undue influence of their public duties." 

Why Not? Privacy concerns are an often-debated aspect of financial disclosure-concerns 
that are magnified when information must be freely available online. Policymakers have dis
cussed the risks associated with entrusting a third-party vendor with sensitive financial infor
mation, how to protect officials who have filed restraining orders, and the appropriateness 
of revealing information about minor children, among others. Citing concerns about safety, 
national security and financial security, 2013 recommendations by the National Academy of 
Public Administration successfully urged Congress to rescind requirements that would have 
made disclosure information of certain federal employees available in an online, searchable 
database. Lack of resources, combined with the sheer volume of reports received, also can 
make the transition to online systems and electronic record retention a difficult goal. 

State Action 
The entities with oversight of financial disclosure vary from ethics commissions, to the sec
retaries of state, to legislative bodies or clerks of the chamber. These entities provide at least 
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some information online-typically filing instructions and frequently asked questions. 

Thirty-nine states and the District of Columbia make blank or sample forms accessible online for leg
islators. Legislators in 22 states can file using an online database. Finally, legislators in many states can 
scan and email their forms to the appropriate entity. In South Dakota, forms cannot be accepted elec
tronically because the secretary of state's office requires them to be notarized. 

Alabama has offered e-filing for all state public officials and employees since 2009, and was required 
to implement an e-filing system in 2012; 88 percent of statements are now are filed via that system. 
Officials say that, in prior years, they were able only to alphabetize the tens of thousands of forms they 
received. The e-filing and online database has helped the staff of the small commission better manage 
its workload and has provided more organization and available data to those interested in reviewing 
documents. 

In at least 29 states, the public can access completed legislator financial disclosure forms online. Florida 
and New York passed laws granting online access in 2013. The duration of online retention of these 
records differs, but at least 20 states and the District of Columbia have online records for previous fil
ing years in addition to the most recent forms. 

In other states, requesters can receive information electronically. A 2006 Delaware attorney general rul
ing declared that the ethics commission must provide electronic reports to those who request them by 
email, although the decision stopped short of requiring that all completed forms be posted online. 

Wisconsin's Government Accountability Board (GAB) must obtain the identity of anyone examining a 
statement of economic interest and notify the pertinent official of his or her identity. As a result, com
pleted forms are not posted online. However, the board has created an index called "Eye on Financial 
Relationships," in which public officials are cross-referenced with various sources of income, such as 
employers, clients and real estate. According to the GAB's website, the purpose of the index is "to iden
tify to which businesses and individuals an official is tied financially - the focus is on financial relation
ships - not on wealth." 

To address privacy concerns, entities with oversight of financial disclosure laws use a few protection 
tools. Laws, rules or commission policy often prescribe the redaction of certain types of information, 
such as addresses and names of clients and children. Other states provisions are similar to Wisconsin's, 
where those who wish to view financial disclosure information must supply identifying information. 
Kansas, one such state, takes a different approach. Forms are available online, but requesters, like filers, 
must electronically submit a message to the ethics commission to receive an automatically generated 
user name and password. This enables access to filed statements. In Oregon, those who wish to review 
legislators' disclosure forms can access an online form, which they must send in to the ethics commis
sion. In Rhode Island, constituents are advised to email the ethics commission in order to receive the 
documents via email. 

NCSL Contacts 
Natalie O'Donnell Wood 
NCSL-Denver 
(303) 856-1485 

Peggy Kerns 
NCSL-Denver 
(303) 856-1447 

Additional Resource 
National Academy of Public Administration. The Stock 
Act: An Independent Review of the Impact of Providing Per
sonally Identifiable Financial Information Online. March 
2013 . 

NCSL. Ethics Commission Contact Information. December 2012. 

T he in fo rmation contained in this Lcgisl3ri ef does no t necessa rily refl ect NCS L policy. 



Legislative Financial Disclosure Forms E-filing and Accessibility - 50 State Chart 

Compiled December 2012 

Updated August 2013 

Oversight Filing deadline FD forms E-filing Completed 
entity accessible FD forms 

online for available to 

legislators? public 
online? 

Alabama Ethics April 30 Yes Required to be Required 

Commission §36-25-14 offered per 36- per 
25-4.3 36-25-4.3 

Alaska Public 3/15; 30 day grace Required Yes 

Offices period. per 
Commission §24.60.210 39.50.050, 

2AAC50.816 

American Samoa 

Arizona Jan 1-31 Sample Required per 

Secretary of 38-542 form only 41-134, can't 

State locate 
Per statute, 

local governing 
bodies can 

choose to use or 
not use the 

system no word 
on legislature 

Arkansas Jan 31 Yes Required 

Secretary of §21-8-701 per 

State 21-8-701 

California Fair 30 days after Yes Available Yes 

Political election/assuming (for some 

Practices office; 30 days after entities} 

Commission leaving office 
§87202 
§87204 

March 1 annually for 
previous year (per 
FPPC} 

Colorado 30 days after Yes 

Secretary of election/appointment/ 
State retention of office; Jan 

10 annually 
§24-6-202 

-1-

Years 
available 
online 

2009-
present 

2011-
present 

2008-
present 
(only a 
few for 
2008} 
2009-
present 



Oversight Filing deadline FD forms E-filing Completed Years 

entity accessible FD forms available 
online for available to online 

legislators? public 
online? 

Connecticut May 1; 60 days after Yes Available Most 

Office of State leaving office current 

Ethics* §1-83 
Delaware Public 14 days after taking Yes Available Must 

Integrity office, then Feb 15 request 
Commission §5813 via FOIA. 

OR March 15 (PIC) 

District of May 15; within 90 days Yes Available Yes 2006-most 

Columbia Board of leaving position current 

of Ethics and § 1-1162.24(a)(l) 
Government 
Accountability 
Florida Within 30 days of Yes By December 1, Yes Most 

Commission on appointment/election/ 2015, the Required current 

Ethics employment (per COi commission per 
website); July 1 by 5 shall submit a 112.31445 
pm; within 60 days of proposal for a 
leaving office for Jan 1 mandatory 
to date of vacancy. electronic filing 

system 
Florida Constitution, Per 112.31445 
Sec 8, Art. II 
§112.3114 

Georgia Between Jan 1-July 1 in Yes Legislators Yes Jan 9, 

Government a non-election year; required to file 2006-most 

Transparency when candidate, no per 21-5-50 current. 

and Campaign later than 15 days after Disclosure 

Finance filing. Exempt from prior to 

Commission filing if holds office for 2005 are 

<15 days. If special available 

election, within 7 days. on the 

§21-5-50 Secretary 
of State' s 
site. 

Guam 
Hawaii Ethics Between Jan 1 and Yes Yes 2010to 

Commission May 31; within 30 days 2013 

of election or 
appointment; within 30 
days of leaving a 
position if not already 
filed. 

-2-



Oversight Filing deadline FD forms E-filing Completed Years 
entity accessible FD forms available 

online for available to online 
legislators? public 

online? 

§84-17 

Idaho 

Illinois Secretary May 1 Not for Required 2004 to 
of State §5 ILCS 420/4A-105 legislators; 5 ILCS 2013 

county clerks 420/4A-106 
are authorized 
to create and 
implement e-
filing systems 

Indiana Principal Seven calendar days Yes 1997-most 

Clerk of the after the first January current 

House or session day. 
Secretary of the § 2-2.1-3-2 

Senate 
Iowa Secretary For the Senate: Within Yes Required 2006-most 
of the Senate; 10 days of adopting an 688.35A current 
Chief Clerk of ethics code/convening 
the House of the second session 

of the biennium. 
Senate Code of Ethics, 
Rule 11. 

For the House: 
February 15. House 
Code of Ethics, Rule 10. 
688.22 

Kansas Secretary April 15-30 Yes Available Yes 
of State § 46-248 

Kentucky Feb 15 Yes Yes Most 

Legislative Ethics KRS 6.793 current 
Commission year; 

disclosure 
s for up to 
4 years 
prior are 
available 
upon 
request 

Louisiana Board May 1; per ethics Must establish Required 2008-most 

of Ethics commission website a computerized 42:1158, current 

must file the year after data system 1159 Can access 

leaving office. which permit reports 

-3-



Oversight Filing deadline FD forms E-filing Completed Years 
entity accessible FD forms available 

online for available to online 
legislators? public 

online? 

electronic from 

filing of all 1999-2008 

reports from 

required to be another 

filed with the link 

board. 
Maine Feb 15 Yes Required per Required 2006-most 

Commission on §1016-A 2013 SB 346 per 1016-G current 

Governmental 
Ethics and 
Campaign 
Finances 
Maryland State April 30; within 60 days Yes Available; 

Ethics of leaving a position Commission 
Commission requiring disclosure must develop 
AND the Joint 15-601 procedures to 
Committee on allow fore-filing 
Legislative Ethics 15-601 

Massachusetts The last Tuesday in Yes Available 

Ethics May annual ly; exempt 
Commission if serves less than 30 

days 
268B Sec. 5 

Michigan No financial disclosure 

Minnesota Within 14 days after Yes Available; Yes Most 

Campaign filing an affidavit of Commission current 

Finance and candidacy or petition must develop 

Public Disclosure to appear on the ballot rules to ensure 

Board for an elective state security per 
office or an elective lOA.025 

local office in a 
metropolitan 
governmental unit; 
April 15 annually if 
information has 
changed . 

Mississippi May 1 Yes Required per Required 2008-most 

Ethics 25-4-207 25-4-27 per 25-4-27 current 

Commission 
Missouri Eth ics May 1 Yes Available 

Commission 105.487 

Montana Dec 15 in even- Yes 

-4-



Oversight Filing deadline FD forms E-filing Completed Years 
entity accessible FD forms available 

online for available to online 
legislators? public 

online? 

Commissioner of numbered years (business 
Political 2-2-106 disclosure 
Practices & multiple 

public 
employme 

nt 
disclosure) 

Nebraska April 1; within 30 days Yes 
Accountability of leaving office 
and Disclosure 49-1493 
Commission 
Nevada Jan 15 Required to be Yes 2004-
Secretary of 281.559 offered per most 
State 281.559, some current 

exemptions 
permitted 

New Hampshire Third Friday in January Yes Yes 2010-
Legislative Ethics 14-B:8 most 
Committee Per 15:A-5 current 

the 
secretary of 
state shall, 

as soon as is 
practical, 

implement 
an 

electronic 
record 

keeping 
system that 
makes the 

public 
information 

on 
statements 
of financial 

interest 
available to 
the public 

through the 
internet (for 

exec 
branch) 

-5-
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Oversight Filing deadline FD forms E-filing Completed Years 
entity accessible FD forms available 

online for available to online 
legislators? public 

online? 
New Jersey Joint May 15; 30 days after Yes Yes 2004-most 
Legislative leaving office. Required for current 
Committee on Legislative Code of exec branch 
Ethical Ethics 2:14 per 52 :13D-
Standards 21 
New Mexico During the month of Yes Yes 2010-most 
Secretary of January current 
State 10-16A-3 
New York May 15; 30 days after Yes Available Yes (starting 2013, now 
Legislative Ethics employment for staff. for executive in 2013, required 
Commission, If currently a legislator, only required of to reta in 
which then no need to pay JCOPE per for five 
passes it along attention to candidate 73-a (k) years by 
to JCOPE for filing requirement law 
record keeping Public Officers Law 73-
and posting ** a 
North Carolina April 15; must also file Yes Available 
Ethics by April 15 the year 
Commission after leaving service 

138A-22 
North Dakota Simultaneously with Yes 
County auditor certificate of 
in county of endorsement or 
residence*** nomination for office. 

16.1-9.2 

Ohio Joint April 15 unless it is an Yes Yes 1994-most 
Legislative Ethics election year; 30 days current 
Committee before election when 

candidacy is voted on; 
15 days after 
appointment 
102.02 

Oklahoma Ethics May 15; 60 days after Yes Available 
Commission leaving service; 30 days Must make 257: 15-1-7 

after appointment them specifies that 
257:15-1-4 available commission can 

per 51:305 use forms or 
software 

Oregon April 15 Sample can access 
Government 244.050 form only list of 
Ethics persons 
Commission** required to 

-6-



Oversight Filing deadline FD forms E-filing Completed Years 
entity accessible FD forms available 

online for available to online 
legislators? public 

online? 
file 

Pennsylvania May 1 Yes Available Yes Current 
Ethics 1104 year 
Commission 
Puerto Rico 
Rhode Island Last Friday in April; Yes Commission 
Ethics within 30 days of website 
Commission candidacy states it will 

36-14-16 email copies 
to 

requesters 
South Carolina 3/30 annually, at 12 Required Yes 2009 to 
Senate House noon per 8-13-365 8-13-365 most 
Ethics 8-13-1114(change must be current for 
Committees, made in 2013 session, publicly legislators 
then filed with yet to be codified) accessible, 
Ethics searchable, 
Commission transferable 
South Dakota Within 15 days of Yes Yes ?? 
Secretary of taking oath of office 
State retains, 3-lA-2 
filed with entity 
with which one 
filed to run*** 
Tennessee April 15 Yes Available Required 2008-most 
Bureau of Ethics 2-10-128 2-10-128 current 
and Campaign 
Finance 
Texas Ethics April 30, 5 pm Yes Can only 

Commission 572.026, .027 for search for 

candidates delinquent 
filers 

Utah Secretary First day of each Yes * *** Required Most 

of the Senate, general session; each 76-8-109, current 

Chief Clerk of time a legislator JR 6-1-201 

the House changes employment 
76-8-109 
JR 6-1-201 

Vermont No financial disclosure 

Virginia Clerk of Jan 8 Yes 
the Senate, 30-110 
Clerk of the 

-7-
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Oversight Filing deadline FD forms E-filing Completed 
entity accessible FD forms 

online for available to 
legislators? public 

online? 

House***** 
Washington April 15 Yes Required per 
Public Disclosure 42.17A.700 42.17A.055 
Commission 
West Virginia Feb 1 Yes Required 
Ethics 6B-2-6 6B-2-6 
Commission 
Wisconsin** April 15 Yes Can file 
Government 19.43 request 
Accountability records via 
Board e-form 

Also can 
access index 

names, if 
they have 
filed, and 

relationship 
to various 

entities 
Wyoming Jan 31 Yes 
Secretary of 9-13-108 
State 
*Can download from OCE website an Excel document listing names of those that e-filed. 

**The public can access forms online that request access to records. 

* * *Disclosures only required when candidates for legislative office. 

*** * Per statute yes, unable to locate. 

Years 
available 
online 

2011-most 
current 
year 

*** **Those interested in accessing statements for legislators must contact the Clerk of the appropriate 

chamber. 

Three states with no FD requirements. Nearly all (not 7) make blank forms accessible on line in some 

way. 20 states have e-filing for legislators, in at least 7 states it is required, in 13 it's an option, in 2 it is 

offered for other entities besides the legislature. At least 29 states enable the public to access 

completed financial disclosure forms for state legislators, required in 11. Ohio has archived records back 

to 1994. 

-8-



~/17/17 
Secretary of State 
State of North Dakota 

#/ 

STATEMENT OF INTERESTS 
SECRETARY OF STATE 
SFN 10172 (10-2015) 

600 E Boulevard Ave Dept 108 
Bismarck ND 58505-0500 
Telephone: (701) 328-4146 
Toll-Free: (800) 352-0867 , option 6 
Fax: (701) 328-3413 

SEE PAGE 4 FOR INSTRUCTIONS Email : soselect@nd .gov 
Website : Vote.ND.Gov 

References to the Statement of Interests are found in North Dakota Century Code, Chapter 16.1-09. 

FILING REQUIREMENTS FOR STATEMENT OF INTERESTS 

1. Every candidate for elective office shall file a Statement of Interests with the appropriate filing officer with whom the candidate filed his/her 
Certificate of Endorsement SFN 17196 or Petition/Certificate of Nomination SFN 2704. 

a. Candidates for President and Vice President of the United States shall file with the Secretary of State either a Statement of Interests as 
required by Chapter 16.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code or a copy of the personal disclosure statement required by the Federal 
Election Commission. 

b. Candidates for US Senate and US House of Representatives shall file this form with the Secretary of State or a copy of the personal 
disclosure statement required by the Federal Election Commission. 

c. Candidates for statewide office shall file with the Secretary of State. 
d. Candidates for legislative office shall file with the Secretary of State. 
e. Candidates for Garrison Conservancy and Soil Conservation district shall file with the County Auditor in their county of residence . 
f. Candidates for District Judge shall file with the Secretary of State. 
g. Candidates for county offices shall file with the County Auditor. 
h. Candidates for city offices shall file with the City Auditor. 
i. Candidates for school district offices shall file with the School Business Manager of the school district. 

The Statement of Interests shall be filed at the same time a Petition/Certificate of Nomination or Certificate of Endorsement is filed . 

Candidates filing a Statement of Interests for the primary election need not re-file for the general election. 

2. Every person appointed by the Governor to a state agency, board , bureau , commission , department, or occupation or professional licensing 
board shall file a Statement of Interests with the Secretary of State no later than the announcement of the appointment. 

~ ease refer to the instructions provided on page 4 of the Statement of Interest for answering specific questions before completing this form . 

~ ease Print 
Name of Candidate or Appointee 

Spouse's Name 

Address I City 

I ..... O-ffi-1ce_Wh_i-ch_C_a_nd_i-da_t_e_is_s_e_e_k_in_g ____________ ~I OR I Position to Which Appointed 

ITEMA 
Name of Business or Employer 

PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION/SOURCE OF INCOME (Check One) 

D Farmer D Military D Investor or Retired 

D Business Owner D Laborer D Professional 

D Clerical and Sales 

D Craftsman 

I Telephone Number 

I State !Zip Code 

D Government Employee 

D Student 

D Other _____________________________________ _ 

Spouse's Name of Business or Employer 

SPOUSE'S PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION/SOURCE OF INCOME (Check One) 

Farmer D Military D Investor or Retired 

Business Owner D Laborer D Professional 

D Other 

I 

D Clerical and Sales 

D Craftsman 

D Government Employee 

D Student 



SFN 10172 (10-2015) Page 2 of 4 

Please Print 

~ EMB 

#/ 
3/17 /17 

~ st the name of each business or trust that is NOT the principal source of income in which you and/or your spouse have a 
financial interest. 

[BUSINESS NAME OR TRUST NAME (list city and state where located)] 

EXAMPLE: Make Me A Lot of Money Investment Co. (Mutual Funds) Bismarck, ND 

ITEMC 

List below the associations or institutions with which you and/or your spouse are closely associated, 
or serve as a director or officer, AND which may be affected by legislative action (for legislative 
candidates), or action of the officeholder of the office to which you are a candidate or appointee. 

ASSOCIATION OR INSTITUTION CAPACITY 

:l 

SELF SPOUSE 

X X 

Place an "X" to 
indicate the 

interested party. 

SELF SPOUSE 



.J/11 /1'1 
SFN 10172 (10-2015) Page 3 of 4 

Please Print 

. EMO 
Identify below by name, any business offices, business directorships, and fiduciary relationships that 
you and/or your spouse have held in the preceding year. 

ASSOCIATION OR INSTITUTION CAPACITY 

AFFIDAVIT 

Place an "X" to 
indicate the 

interested party. 

SELF SPOUSE 

I, the undersigned, declare this Statement of Interests has been examined by me and to the best of my knowledge is a true, 
correct, and complete statement of my financial interests. I understand any intentional violation of the law requiring the filing of 
this statement shall result in my being deprived of my appointment or assuming the duties of the elective office. 

Signature of Candidate or Appointee I Date 

• 



#/ 
.f/17/11 

SFN 10172 (10-2015) Page 4 of 4 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR STATEMENT OF INTERESTS 

•
0 FILES: The Statement of Interests must be filed by all candidates seeking to have their name placed on the ballot for federal , statewide, 
cial district, legislative, county, multi-district, city, and school district office. Every person appointed by the Governor to a state agency, 

ard , bureau , commission, department, or occupation or professional licensing board shall also file a Statement of Interests. 

WHEN TO FILE: Every candidate for elective office must file a Statement of Interests with the appropriate filing officer at the same time as filing 
his/her Certificate of Endorsement SFN 17196 or Petition/Certificate of Nomination SFN 2704 and Affidavit of Candidacy SFN 2703. 
Appointees of the Governor shall file a Statement of Interests no later than the announcement of the appointment. 

WHERE TO FILE: 

FEDERAL, STATEWIDE, JUDICIAL, AND LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT CANDIDATES - File with the Secretary of State: 
Secretary of State 

State of North Dakota 
600 E Boulevard Ave Dept 108 

Bismarck ND 58505-0500 
APPOINTEES OF THE GOVERNOR - File with the Secretary of State 
COUNTY AND MULTI-DISTRICT CANDIDATES - File with the County Auditor in their county of residence 
CITY CANDIDATES - File with the City Auditor 
SCHOOL DISTRICT CANDIDATES - File with the School Business Manager 

HOW TO FILE: 

ITEM A - PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION: The occupations listed are those defined on the North Dakota state income tax return. Check only one 
category for the principal source of income for yourself, and only one for your spouse. Please mark and complete the box labeled "Other" if you 
or your spouse's occupation is not listed. 

ITEM B - List by name each business or trust that is NOT the principal source of income, in which you and/or your spouse have a financial 
interest. Include any of the following that apply: 

1. Any business or trust in which you and/or your spouse own a legal or equitable interest. 

•• Any business or trust in which you and/or your spouse have investments. Include the name of the business or trust of which you have 
stocks, mutual funds, bonds, debentures, or debt obligations of corporations and/or municipal corporations. Financial interests that are 
contained in diversified portfolios need only be mentioned by the brokerage establishment it is with . 

3. Any business or trust from which you and/or your spouse receive compensation . 

4. Any business or trust paying you and/or your spouse a fee or commission for professional or consulting services. Include those public 
agencies from which you and/or your spouse received a fee or commission. Attorneys and others who list their principal occupation as 

"professional" are not required to list clients . 

5. Public agencies (state or local) to which you and/or your spouse sold goods or services. 

ITEM C - List the associations or institutions with which you and/or your spouse are closely associated, or serve as a director or officer of, 
and which maybe affected by legislative action (for legislative candidates) or action of the officeholder of the office to which you are a candidate 
or appointee. 

List organizations and associations and note the capacity of you and/or your spouse's relationship such as "member", "board of 
directors", "consultant", etc. 

ITEM D - Identify by name any business office, business directorship, and fiduciary relationship that you and/or your spouse have held in 
the preceding calendar year. 

Fiduciary means acting as a guardian , trustee, executor, administrator, or conservator for any person, whether individual or corporate . 
Specify the capacity of the relationship of you and/or your spouse for any of the listed businesses, trusts and/or fiduciary relationships, 
such as "director" , "executor", "trustee", etc. 

SPECIAL NOTES: 

• 
Items B, C and D of this form have limited space for listing items. If you need more space, attach additional sheets in the same format 
and clearly identify which of the three items (B, C or D) the additional sheet continues. Insert the additional sheets into this form . 

Use an "X" to indicate the "interest" relationship for (a) yourself, or (b) your spouse. 

You are not required to list dollar amounts or the nature of the work performed in ITEMS B, C or D. 

ASSISTANCE: Questions regarding the Statement of Interests may be directed to the Elections Unit of the Secretary of State's Office at (701) 
328-4146 or (800) 352-0867 or the appropriate filing officer. 



SEPTEMBER 2013 

Did You Know? 
Ohio's online financial dis

closure archives date back 
to 1994. 

• Online e-filing systems 
are required in 10 states, 

· h Florida joining the list 
015. 

In at least 13 states, stat
utes require that the public 
have online access to leg
islators'financial disclosure 
forms. 
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LEG IS BRIEF 
BRIEFING PAPERS ON THE IMPORTANT ISSUES OF THE DAY 

VoL. 21, No. 36 

Electronic Access and Financial Disclosure 
By Natalie O'Donnell Wood 

Why File Financial Disclosures? In all but three states, legislators, other public officials 
and, sometimes, public employees, must disclose some information about their personal 
financess. Many states have justified the need for disclosures in statute. Pennsylvania, for 
example, notes that, "in order to strengthen faith and confidence" in government, the public 
has a right to "be assured that the financial interests of (office holders) do not conflict with 
the public trust." Colorado and Texas similarly mention that financial disclosures lead co 

trust and confidence in government. 

Another often-cited benefit to financial disclosure is that it enables filers to examine and 
review potential areas where their private interests and public service may intersect. North 
Carolina's statute says that, "the purpose of disclosure ... is to identify and avoid conflicts of 
interest and potential conflicts of interest between private interests and public duties." The 
statute further holds public officials accountable by calling on them to "take an active, thor
ough, and conscientious role in the disclosure and review process." Washington's Public Dis
closure Commission tells filers that disclosure laws "stem from common law and the biblical 
caution that 'no man can serve two masters."' 

Why e-file? Groups such as the Sunlight Foundation, the National Institute for Money and 
State Politics and the Center for Public Integrity support and promote easily accessible, and 
even searchable, online financial information about public officials. They argue that open 
access to such information is critical to educating the public about whom or what influences 
their elected officials. North Carolina's Ethics Commission has noted that "public scrutiny 
of these documents allows the public to see for themselves that their public officials are free 
from impermissible or undue influence of their public duties." 

Why Not? Privacy concerns are an often-debated aspect of financial disclosure-concerns 
that are magnified when information must be freely available online. Policymakers have dis
cussed the risks associated with entrusting a third-party vendor with sensitive financial infor
mation, how to protect officials who have filed restraining orders, and the appropriateness 
of revealing information about minor children, among others. Citing concerns about safety, 
national security and financial security, 2013 recommendations by the National Academy of 
Public Administration successfully urged Congress to rescind requirements that would have 
made disclosure information of certain federal employees available in an online, searchable 
database. Lack of resources, combined with the sheer volume of reports received, also can 
make the transition to online systems and electronic record retention a difficult goal. 

State Action 
The entities with oversight of financial disclosure vary from ethics commissions, to the sec
retaries of state, to legislative bodies or clerks of the chamber. These entities provide at least 

Denver 
7700 Enst First Place 
Denve1; Colorado 80230 
Phone (303) 364-7700 
IVIUIV.llCSl.org 

s 

Washington, D .C. 
444 North Capitol Street, NW, Suite 515 
Washington, D. C. 2000 I 
Phone (202) 624-5400 



some information online-typically filing instructions and frequencly asked questions. 

Thirty-nine states and the District of Columbia make blank or sample forms accessible online for leg
islators. Legislators in 22 states can file using an online database. Finally, legislators in many states can 
scan and email their forms to the appropriate entity. In South Dakota, forms cannot be accepted elec
tronically because the secretary of state's office requires them to be notarized. 

Alabama has offered e-filing for all state public officials and employees since 2009, and was required 
co implement an e-filing system in 2012; 88 percent of statements are now are filed via chat system. 
Officials say chat, in prior years, they were able only to alphabetize the tens of thousands of forms they 
received. The e-filing and online database has helped the staff of the small commission better manage 
its workload and has provided more organization and available data to chose interested in reviewing 
documents. 

In at least 29 states, the public can access completed legislator financial disclosure forms online. Florida 
and New York passed laws granting online access in 2013. The duration of online retention of these 
records differs, but at least 20 states and the District of Columbia have online records for previous fil
ing years in addition to the most recent forms. 

In ocher states, requesters can receive information electronically. A 2006 Delaware acrorney general rul
ing declared chat the ethics commission must provide electronic reports to chose who request them by 
email, although the decision stopped short of requiring chat all completed forms be posted online. 

Wisconsin's Government Accountability Board (GAB) must obtain the identity of anyone examining a 
statement of economic interest and notify the pertinent official of his or her identity. As a result, com
pleted forms are not posted online. However, the board has created an index called "Eye on Financial 
Relationships," in which public officials are cross-referenced with various sources of income, such as 
employers, clients and real estate. According to the GAB's website, the purpose of the index is "co iden
tify co which businesses and individuals an official is tied financially - the focus is on financial relation
ships - not on wealth." 

To address privacy concerns, entities with oversight of financial disclosure laws use a few protection 
cools. Laws, rules or commission policy often prescribe the redaction of certain types of information, 
such as addresses and names of clients and children. Ocher states provisions are similar co Wisconsin's, 
where those who wish to view financial disclosure information must supply identifying information. 
Kansas, one such state, cakes a different approach. Forms are available online, but requesters, like filers , 
must electronically submit a message to the ethics commission co receive an automatically generated 
user name and password. This enables access to filed statements. In Oregon, those who wish to review 
legislators' disclosure forms can access an online form, which they must send in to the ethics commis
sion. In Rhode Island, constituents are advised to email the ethics commission in order to receive the 
documents via email. 

NCSL Contacts 
Natalie O'Donnell Wood 
NCSL-Denver 
(303) 856-1485 

Peggy Kerns 
NCSL- Denver 
(303) 856-1447 

Additional Resource 
National Academy of Public Administration. The Stock 
Act: An Independent Review of the Impact of Providing Per
sona/Ly Identifiable Financial Information Online. March 
2013. 

NCSL. Ethics Commission Contact Information. December 2012. 

The information contained in this Lcgis13rief docs not necessarily reflect N C SL policy. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Mock 

March 23, 2017 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1418 

Page 1, line 2, after "interests" insert "; and to provide for a legislative management study of 
statements of interests" 

Page 1, after line 20, insert: 

"SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - STATEMENTS OF 
INTERESTS. During the 2017-18 interim, the legislative management shall consider 
studying the purpose and content of statements of interests and the forms and 
information required to be filed , including the appropriate financial interests and other 
necessary content. The study must include consideration of whether supplementary 
statements or updates of information are necessary and a determination as to who is 
required to file statements of interest and who should be filing statements of interest. 
The study also must include a review of filing deadlines and consideration of how long 
records should be retained . The legislative management shall report its findings and 
recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 
recommendations, to the sixty-sixth legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 17.0001.02001 




